FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
6/1/2021 8:00 AM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

No. 99651-2

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

In re the Marriage of:

TATYANA MASON, Appellant in this Court and in the COA-II

and

JOHN MASON, Respondent in this Court and in the COA-II.

Petition for Review

Tatyana Mason, pro se

P. O. Box 6441 Olympia, WA 98507 Tatyanam377(a)gmail.com

#

#### I. Identity of Petitioner:

Appellant *pro-se* Tatyana Mason is filing Petition for Review in this Court for the following reasons:

#### II. Court of Appeals Division II' Decision:

Tatyana seeks Review of the Court of Appeals Division II (COA-II)
Unpublished Opinion filed on March 9, 2021 See Appendix ©. Tatyana
filed two Motions to Extend Time to file Petition for Review due to her
medical emergency cancer situation timely dated (April 9 & April 30,
2021). These two motions have been granted by this Court. The due date
to file this Petition for Review is June 1, 2021. See Appendix A.

#### III. Introduction:

The cases No. 50009-4; 52959-9 directly arrived from the 2016 tree day trial (case 07-3-00848-0 /COA - 49839-1). Tatyana as a pro-se prevailed the 2016 trial. In the court of appeals' poorly made opinions is a genuine issue of material fact concerning whether they caused a depravation of Tatyana's removing condition from her careen card, gainful employment and compelling these unreasonable orders to be free from the court of appeals' false holdings based on the fabricated evidence, multiple misstatement of facts, false credibility evaluation and false case analysis.

All seven holdings of the court of appeals have been taking out of the blue — none of the COA- holdings are matching any of Tatyana's claims.

Because the court of appeals division II weighed the 2016 trial evidence of extraordinary circumstances, reasonable minds could reach different factual conclusions about an issue that is material to the disputed Tatyana's claim. **Hartley v. State**, 103 Wn.2d 768,775, 698 P.2d (1985)

Here, (1) Tatyana asked the court to **INCREASE** an amount of John's supersedeas bond-- not to RELEASE funds held in a supersedeas bond as the court of appeals falsely claimed; (2) Tatyana asked the court to enter the 2016 trial's oral existing findings into written order not new findings as the court of appeals grossly fabricated; (3) Contrary to the COA-II false analysis - res-judicata cannot be apply in these cases because previously the court of appeals or the opposite party never mentioned or suggested about the USCIS order and the 2016 trial court findings of extraordinary circumstances that "the 2013/2015 lower court orders and the 2015 COA-II' opinion directly deprived Tatyana from removing conditions from her green card, gainful employment and compelling the 2013 order & 2015 opinion. Now, it is tacitly conceded that neither of the 2016 USCIS order and the 2016 trial finding of extraordinary circumstances mentioned above are barred by res-judicata; (4) Contrary to the COA-II false statement, the 2016 trial did consider both parties financial circumstances that is why the 2013 lower court orders and 2015 opinion had been found unjust and vacated - but the court of appeals weighed this evidence, changed the 2016 trial findings on its own fabricated fanding by falsely claiming that "Tatyana's argument that the trial court failed to consider financial circumstances is barred by res judicata"; (5) The 2016 trial found several extraordinary circumstances-- vacated these unreasonable orders under CR 60(b)(11)-- but the COA-II grossly misstated the 2016 trial facts falsely stated that there were not extraordinary circumstances have been found by the 2016 trial. COA weighed the 2016 trial evidence, contradicted to the 2016 trial facts, credibility evaluation - directly violated the case laws -State v. Davis, 176 Wn. App. 385, 396 n. 10, 308 P. 3d 807 (2013). Since the credibility of witnesses and findings of facts were a matter for the 2016 trial court's evaluation- the 2016 trial' findings upon this matter must be reinstated; (6) Genuine issue of material fact exists over whether John and his attorney's misconduct on appeals caused a violation of Tatyana's constitutional right; (7) The court may reappointed the superior retired judge as a pro-tempore in accordance with RCW 2.08.180. This court should dismiss the COA-II' grossly fabricated evidence, false case analysis entirely and review this matter as de-novo.

#### IV. Issues Presented for Review:

1. Whether a genuine issue of material fact exists when, after the court of appeals division II weighed the 2016 trial evidence, reasonable minds could reach different factual conclusions about an issue that is

material to the disputed Tatyana's claim. See <u>Hartley v. State</u>, 103 Wn.2d 768,775, 698 P.2d (1985)

- 2. Whether in reviewing the 2016 trial court's findings of extraordinary circumstances which were made on the basis of conflicting testimony, the Court of Appeals may not substitute its evaluation of witnesses' credibility for that of the 2016 trial court. See <u>State v. Davis</u>, 176 Wn. App.385, 396 n.10, 308 P.3d 807 (2013).
- 3. Whether the res-judicata doctrine bars the 2016 trial finding of several extraordinary circumstances and the 2016 USCIS order when the court of appeals nor the opposite party <u>never</u> mentioned or suggested about these findings and the USCIS order in any of their statements of fact, briefs, case analysis and opinions.
- 4. Whether enough evidence in the court of appeals records is establishes a genuine issue of material fact of the 2016 trial.
- 5. Whether the court of appeals made their opinions based on fabricated evidence presented by the opposite party knows or reasonably should know would cause Tatyana to inflict the constitutional injury.
- 6. Whether the delayed entry of the 2016 trial oral findings made without doubt do not require reversal on appeal.
- 7. Whether, the cases in the superior court of any county may be tried by a judge pro tempore in accordance with RCW 2.08.180.

- 8. Whether a previously elected judge of the superior court retires leaving a pending case in which the judge has made discretionary rulings, the judge is **entitled** to hear the pending case as a judge pro tempore without any written agreement.
- 9. Whether in the Washington State previous cases a trial court's determination of the supersedeas bond amount is reviewed for an abuse of discretion. Here, a recusal judge Hirsch and the court of appeals division II abuse its discretion in refusing to increase the supersedeas bond from \$15,000 to \$40,000 on a pending appeal. *See* **IBEW Health & Welfare Trust of Sw. Wash. v. Rutherford**, 381 P.3d 1221(Wash. Ct. App. 2016).

#### V. Statement of the case

#### 1. Background:

Tatyana arrived in the United States on June 11, 1999, as the fiancée of John Mason. She did not speak or understand English. John and Tatyana married on August 19, 1999, in the State of Washington.

Tatyana's status in the U.S. was adjusted from fiancée to **conditional**lawful resident on October 28, 1999, due to her marriage to John and the Affidavit of Support Contract John signed to sponsor Tatyana. It was found by the 2016 trial that John refused to remove condition from Tatyana's temporary green card required him by law and refused to financial support her. RP 11/02/16 at 469-70. Though testimony and

compelling evidence, the 2016 trial found: John abused Tatyana by threatening her immigration status, strictly controlling her access to money, restricted her ability to go to school or obtain a job, and abusing her emotionally, verbally, and physically. RP 11/02/16 at 469-70.

The parties separated on July 18th, 2007". RP11/02/16 at 470. "The 2007 court placed a Domestic Violence Protection Order against John". Supp. CP \_\_\_, sub 50; RP at 470. The 2007 Court found that "John committed act of abuse and control toward Tatyana", the court found that Tatyana is a disadvantage spouse; John has been dishonest with the 2007 Court trial, that John is secreting the children". Supp. CP \_\_, sub 50.

Before divorced, Tatyana had to use school loan money to meet the minimum necessities of life. RP at 470-5 After divorced, Tatyana has struggled to provide for herself and was even required to declare bankruptcy. RP at 470-81. Right after final divorce, John and his unethical attorney Ms. Robertson started their long mission of harassment against Tatyana by using the court system in which it was not designed. RP 12/09/16 at 17-20. John and his attorney Ms. Robertson started to file thousands of motions in court - without serving Tatyana by taking advantage of Tatyana's financial, legal and language and cultural disadvantage. RP 11/02/16 at 469-82.

#### 2. The 2013 lower court one sided decision based on fabricated evidence:

Without giving Tatyana an opportunity to defense herself at the English speaking court, a recusal judge Hirsch made her one sided decision based on fabricated evidence presented by John and his unethical attorney Ms. Robertson. The recusal judge Hirsch falsely stated:

- (1) Tatyana is an English speaking woman who is voluntarily unemployed;
- (2) Tatyana abused John and her children physically and emotionally;
- (3) Children should stay with John, Tatyana has supervised visitation;
- (4) Tatyana is responsible to pay \$412,00 per month child support;
- (5) Tatyana refused to pay \$10,000 physiological evaluation ordered by judge Hirsch by her choice;
- (6) Tatyana is obligated to pay \$300, per hour twice a week for the apeutic evaluation with her children; Pay to Dr. Lucki his hourly fees until the child physiologist will decided that it is enough.
- (7) John, Dr. Lucki, Therapeutically evaluator and court coordinator are in control of an abusive Tatyana.

#### 3. The 2015 court of appeals opinion:

Since Tatyana did not speak or understand English, financially struggled, she was not able to retain an appellant attorney. Without legal knowledge and speaking English - she filed an appeal—which was immediately denied.

#### 4. Tatyana's immigration Status at Issue:

In 2015 via USCIS letter Tatyana accidently learned that her conditions were not removed by John as it was required him by law and that she is in danger. Ex 36 ( Jay Gairson report). She learned that the

USCIS several times reminded to John to do this—but he refused. Ex 36 (Gairson's testimony and report).

Tatyana also learned that the 2013 lower court order and 2015 opinion are preventing Tatyana from removing her conditions from green card and prevented Tatyana from gainful employment. Ex 36 (Gairson report)

RP11/02/16 at 475-6;

In 2015, Tatyana filed her motions to vacate the 2013 order—but because the commissioners and judges of the superior court in Olympia are so uneducated in immigration filed—they refused to understand the issue—until the Judge Wickham who had a chance of previously handling these type of cases- took this case to the 2016 three day trial.

5. The 2016 trial's findings of fact and credibility evaluation --- which the COA-II weighed, overlooked or substituted on its own fabricated findings and its evaluation:

The 2016 three day trial in front of Judge Wickham via testimony and compelling evidence found that:

- The 2013 lower court in front of recusal judge Hirsch and the 2015 court of appeals opinion were one sided based on John and his attorney Ms. Robertson' fabricated evidence. CP123-5.
- (2) The 2013 recusal judge Hirsch and the 2015 court of appeals opinion are incorrectly treated Tatyana as she was born in the US, has the US citizen, English is her native language. RP at 481-2
- (3) Without giving Tatyana an opportunity to defense herself the 2013 lower court made unreasonable fundamentally wrong decisions which is impossible to compel. RP11/02/16 at 479-82;

- (4) John and his expert witnesses Ms. Hurt, Ms. Seifert directly lied via testimony and declarations- had been sanctioned under CR11. RP 11/02/16 at 469-82; RP 12/09/16 at 16-20.
- (5) Tatyana and her expert witnesses Jay Gairson and Ms. Pontorollo found credible. RP 11/02/16 at 474.
- 6. The 2016 trial's Extraordinary Circumstances ---- the court of appeals weighed, overlooked and <u>never</u> mentioned or suggested in their findings of fact, analysis or opinions.
  - (1) Tatyana is in extreme economical hardship for many years because abusive John refused to remove condition from her green card and the 2013, 2015 and 2015 court of appeals opinion—deprives Tatyana from removing these conditions and gainful employment. RP 11/02/16 at 475-6.
  - (2) The compelling evidence (Ex 37) the USCIS order directing family court to vacate the 2013 and 2015 orders;

THE 2016 USCIS ORDER "to be eligible for receiving permanent resident card and legal work authorization- Tatyana must submit the documents, and forms: Certified copy of dismissal of the 2013 child support order from appropriate state office and court.

(3) Expert Witness on immigration status Jay Gairson's testimony and his report (Ex 36) confirmed

MR. GAIRSON's REPORT ("89. Tatyana entered the US on a K-1 visa, she would not have qualified to obtain her permanent resident status through any other normal means as **only through John removing the conditions** from her temporary permanent resident card" Ex 36 at 13 # 80 & 89.

MR. GAIRISON REPORT: ("11. Tatyana's conditional permanent residence expired over a decade ago and she will have a difficult time acquiring a waiver to remove those conditions & gainful employment") Ex 36 at page 2; 17.

(4) John abused Tatyana and her children during their marriage and after divorce:

Ms. PONTOROLO: We have the record that since 2001 it's very often a technique used by John to have control over Tatyana a victim of his abuse. There are a number of

techniques that are used by perpetrators. Wherever control can be gained, it's utilized. RP 11/02/16 at 383; CP 971.

On January 9, 2017 Judge Wickham retired. On January 25, 2017

John filed his frivolous appeal full of misstatements. Because Judge

Wickham issued a judgment against John and his attorney Ms Robertson in the amount of \$12,800 – John filed \$15,000 bond.

On January 25, 2017 Tatyana had a 30 minutes court hearing in front of the recusal judge Hirsch where she denied Tatyana's motion to vacate the 2013 unreasonable parenting plan. Tatyana filed an appeal.

On the same day January 25, 2017 court hearing Tatyana asked the lower court to increase the amount of bond from \$15,000 to \$40,000. Tatyana's motion was denied as well. Tatyana filed an appeal.

#### 7. Court of Appeals and Error—Review—Evaluation of Testimony:

The Washington Supreme Court hold that: "In reviewing a trial's findings of fact which were made on the basis of conflicting testimony, the court of appeals may not substitute its evaluation of witness credibility for that of the trial".

The court of appeals division II overlooked and weighed <u>ALL</u> the 2016 trial evidence, substitute the 2016 trial credibility evaluation on its own fabricated evaluation, grossly changed the 2016 trial's findings of fact on its own fabricated findings, made false analysis and holdings which none of them match any of Tatyana's claim.

The court of appeals 2018 opinion solely relied on the 2015 opinion and 2013 lower court order. The 2016 trial findings of fact and credibility evaluation have been completely ignored, overlooked and weighed by the court of appeals. Out of the blue the court of appeals hold about the I-864 - which was never been at issue at the 2016 trial; The Court of appeals never mentioned or suggested regarding the USCIS order and the 2016 trial Extraordinary Circumstances which were the major issue at the 2016 trial and the reasons to vacate the 2013 and 2015 orders including the 2015 court of appeals opinion. See the 2018 opinion.

<u>The 2021 court of appeals opinion</u> made the same error by relying on their previously fundamentally wrong 2015 and 2018 opinions which has been specifically rejected by the 2016 trial. Now, again none of the seven holding of the court of appeals- matches any of Tatyana's claims.

#### **VI. ARGUMENT:**

# 1. Material Facts --- Review--- Evaluation of Testimony at Issue

Because the court of appeals division II weighed the 2016 trial evidence of extraordinary circumstances and changed the 2016 trial findings of fact on its own fabricated fact, reasonable minds could reach different factual conclusions about an issue that is material to the disputed Tatyana's claim. *See* the Supreme Court of Washington. En Banc. No. 44335. **Hartley v. State**, 103 Wn.2d 768,775, 698 P.2d (1985)

Here, in reviewing the 2016 trial court's findings of facts which were made on the basis of conflicting testimony and evidence, an appellate court unexpectedly weighed the 2016 trial evidence, substituted the 2016 trial credibility determination & findings for fabricated determination & findings and made false case analysis – contradicted to the 2016 trial findings, credibility evaluation and to the case law: ("Court of Appeals cannot weigh trial evidence, change facts or make new credibility determinations on appeal"). State v. Davis, 176 Wn. App. 385, 396 n. 10, 308 P.3d 807 (2013)(citing State v. Thomas, 150 Wn. 2d 821, 874-75, 83 P. 3d 970 (2004)). Additionally, the court of appeals or the opposite party never mentioned or suggested at any of their briefs, case analyses, statements or opinions, even in this action, about the 2016 USCIS order and the 2016 trial court findings that the state courts orders and COA-II opinion directly prevented Tatyana from removing conditions from her green card, preventing her from gainful employment and preventing her from compelling these unreasonable orders. It is tacitly conceded that neither of the 2016 USCIS order and the 2016 trial finding of extraordinary circumstances mentioned above are barred by res-judicata.

The USCIS order and the 2016 trial finding are controlling precedent in this action. Contrary to the COA-II false analysis - res-

judicata cannot be apply in these cases. This Court must reverse the court of appeals opinion and review this matter as de-novo.

#### 2. Supersedeas Bond at Issue.

In the 2017 motion and briefs - Tatyana asked the court to

INCREASE an amount of John's supersedeas bond from \$15,000 to
\$40,000. She also supported her argument with RAP 7.2 (h) and with
letter of Kelly Vamaka (appellant attorney) who would take the case if the
bond would be increased. Tatyana also supported her argument with the
case law IBEW Health & Welfare Trust of Sw. Wash. v. Rutherford,
381 P.3d 1221 (Wash. Ct. App. 2016) but the Court of Appeals falsely
claimed: ("Tatyana asked to RELEASE funds held in a supersedeas bond
John's appeal in case Mason and that Tatyana failed to support her
argument"). The COA-II made long-false-ridicules case analysis- which
are not matching with Tatyana's request, denied Tatyana's motion via
fabricated holding in the opinion. See Opinion at p.1-2; 7-8.

**Legal Analysis:** In the **IBEW Health** case the trial court awarded a judgment of \$57,141.69 against Rutherford in favor of IBEW. Rutherford filed a notice of appeal. At the hearing on the motion for stay, Rutherford proposed a bond in the amount of \$58,643.18 and IBEW proposed a bond amount of \$96,874.39. **IBEW** also suggested that the trial court round up

the bond to \$100,000. The trial court granted the motion to stay, subject to Rutherford filing a bond or security in the amount of \$100,000. RAP 7.2(h) To stay a money judgment, the trial court must set the bond in the amount of "the judgment, plus interest likely to accrue during the pendency of the appeal and attorney fees, costs, and expenses likely to be awarded on appeal." RAP 8.1(c)(1) (emphasis added). Henry v. Bitar, 102 Wash.App. 137, 140, 5 P.3d 1277 (2000), review denied, 142 Wash.2d 1029, 21 P.3d 1150 (2001). Determination of these other factors necessarily required the trial court to exercise its discretion in estimating not only the amount likely to accrue but to estimate the length of the appeal. A party may object to the supersedeas decision of the trial court by motion in this court. RAP 8.1(h). In the IBEW case the court of appeals hold that a trial court's determination of the supersedeas bond amount is reviewed for an abuse of discretion. They found that the trial court did not abuse its discretion in setting the supersedeas bond at \$100,000.

Here, in Tatyana's case, the 2016 trial Judge Wickham awarded a judgment of \$12,800 against John in favor of Tatyana in December 2016. On January 9, 2017 Judge Wickham retired. John filed a notice of appeal on January 25, 2017 and filed a bond in the amount of \$15,000. Tatyana proposed a bond amount of \$40,000. But the recusal lower court judge Hirsh denied Tatyana's motion to increase the bond without any

reasonable basis. Tatyana filed a motion to the court of appeals under RAP 8.1(h) but the court of appeals denied Tatyana's motion again without any reason or explanations. On March 9, 2021—the court of appeals issued their opinions full of fabricated facts, misstatements of the case, made false analysis, fabricated false holding, denied Tatyana's request.

To reach justice in this matter, this court must dismiss the court of appeals' opinion entirely and review this matter as de-novo.

3. The 2018 successor Judge Wilson and the 2021 court of Appeals opinion abused its discretion in denying the 2016 delayed entry of facts and vacating CR 11 order -- because the Supreme Court hold- Delayed entry does not require reversal on appeal.

In the case **State v. Portomene** 79 Wn. App. 863 (Wash. Ct. App. 1995). "The State court has the burden of presenting findings for entry, but did not prepare written findings until approximately **two months after the filing of Appellant's opening brief**. The court holds "Delayed entry does not require reversal on appeal". With regard to prejudice, the written findings ultimately entered here closely mirror the oral ruling. There is no indication that the findings were "tailored" to meet issues raised in this appeal. With regard to whether the delayed entry prevented effective appellate review, we note that the oral ruling demonstrates the court found all elements beyond a reasonable doubt. **Portomene's** counsel on appeal was able to present well-articulated arguments based on the oral ruling.

Thus, the delay did not prevent effective appellate review. We therefore decline to reverse, and will consider the findings despite their late entry".

Here, in Tatyana's case: Tatyana was acted as a pro-se litigant at the 2016 tree day trial. The trial Judge Wickham has the burden of presenting findings for entry; Judge Wickham issued a written CR 11(a) order but did not prepare written findings because he retired soon after this trial. John filed a notice of appeal and Tatyana filed her motion two months after the filing of John's Opening Brief in 2018. With regard to prejudice, Tatyana asked the court to enter oral existed findings into a written order closely mirror the oral ruling. She asked the lower court to supplement the evidence and oral ruling of Judge Wickham. She also supported her argument with the case law: **State v. Portomene** 79 Wn. App. 863 (Wash. Ct. App. 1995). But, the new successor judge Wilson denied Tatyana's motion based on fabricated false statements of the opposite attorney - who was specifically found in misconduct by the 2016 trial Judge. On March 9, 2021, the court of appeals fabricated evidence, made false case analysis and denied Tatyana's request via fake holding in its opinion by falsely stating that Tatyana asked to enter new findings. The court of appeals abused its discretion and violated the law.

The court of appeal inappropriately denied Tatyana's motion on delayed entry of the 2016 findings of facts and improperly vacated the CR

11(a) sanction order. This court should review this matter as de-novo; the court of appeals false holding must reverse. The CR 11(a) order must be reinstalled.

# 4. Superior Pro-Tem Judge can be re-appointed by the Court Authority:

Cases in the superior court of any county may be tried by a judge pro tempore in accordance with RCW 2.08.180., If a previously elected judge of the superior court retires leaving a pending case in which the judge has made discretionary rulings, the judge is **entitled** to hear the pending case as a judge pro tempore without any written agreement. **State v. Franks**, 7 Wn. App. 594, 596, 501 P.2d 622 (1972)-("On August 20, 1999, a duly-elected Pierce County superior court judge signed an order appointing a pro tem judge."). A judge pro tempore shall, before entering upon his duties in any cause, take and subscribe the following oath or affirmation:

"I do solemnly swear (or affirm, as the case may be,) that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of Washington, and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of judge pro tempore in the cause wherein . . . . . . is plaintiff and . . . . . . defendant, according to the best of my ability." Green Mountain School Dist. v. Durkee, 56 Wn.2d 154, 351 P.2d 525 (1960). Judge Pro Tempore Brown was appointed by written order.

See also case Marriage of Barrett-Smith 110 Wn. App. 87 (Wash. Ct. App. 2002). In this case ("Charles concedes that the trial judge erred in denying Cindy's request for a continuance and that a new trial is

warranted. We remand for a new trial... before a judge pro tem appointed in accordance with the requirements of RCW 2.08.180.").

Here, in Tatyana's case, Judge Wickham retired right after the 2016 trial, leaving a pending case in which the judge has made discretionary rulings; the judge Wickham is <u>entitled</u> to hear the pending case as a judge pro tempore without any written agreement. It is too expensive and unnecessary to start a new trial with a successor judge who does not know the case. The only issue is that the Judge Wickham would enter his oral findings into the written order. This court must reverse the court of appeals fake holdings and review this matter as de-novo.

#### 5. Tatyana's Constitution Right at Issue:

("'[I]t often may be difficult to decide whether a right is clearly established without deciding precisely what the constitutional right happens to be." (alteration in original) (quoting Lyons v. City of Xenia, 417 F.3d 565, 581 (6th Cir. 2005) (Sutton, J., concurring))). The Fourteenth Amendment grants the right to due process of law to a person facing a depravation of her gainful employment by the state based on false evidence presented by the opposite party over time in their multiple briefs.

Fourteenth Amendment cannot tolerate when false evidence have been used in court. Here, the court of appeals falsely stated that no constitutional right is at issue. Because the court of appeals decision to deprave Tatyana of her children and gainful employment rested with John and his attorney's briefs cannot be liable for any constitutional violation that occurred. This Court must disagree.

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