FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 7/13/2021 1:00 PM BY ERIN L. LENNON CLERK

No. 99651-2

Court of Appeals No. 50009-4-II (consolidated with No. 52959-9-II)

### IN THE SUPREME COURT FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

Marriage of:

### TATYANA MASON,

Petitioner,

۷.

JOHN MASON,

Respondent.

### ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

MASTERS LAW GROUP, P.L.L.C. Kenneth W. Masters, WSBA 22278 241 Madison Avenue North Bainbridge Island, WA 98110 (206) 780-5033 ken@appeal-law.com shelby@appeal-law.com

Attorneys for Respondent

##

## FACTS RELEVANT TO ANSWER

The facts are correctly stated in the Court of Appeals' three

opinions rejecting Tatyana's repetitious claims. See Appx. A (2015);

B (2018); & C (2021); see also BR 2-16 (facts & procedure cited).

They need not be restated here, but in summary outline (*id*.):

- 1999-2006: Tatyana immigrated to the U.S. on a "fiancée visa." John and Tatyana married. They had two children.
- 2007: John filed for dissolution of their marriage. Tatyana obtained a retaliatory DV order.
- 2008: The court entered a dissolution decree, parenting plan, and Child Support Order. No RCW 26.09.191 restrictions were imposed against John. Tatyana did not appeal any of these orders.
- 2011: The children reported Tatyana's abuse, so John moved to modify the parenting plan. CPS determined the children's allegations were "founded."
- 2013: John's modification action went to trial, with both parties represented by counsel. Finding that Tatyana abused the children, Judge Hirsch modified the parenting plan to give John custody of the children. The court had no further concerns about DV by John. It ordered Tatyana to pursue therapeutic visitation, but she never has. Tatyana appealed.
- July 2015: The Court of Appeals affirmed Judge Hirsch. Tatyana did not petition for review.
- September 2015: Tatyana sought to "dismiss" the 2013 Child Support Order, to which she had agreed, and from which she never appealed. A commissioner rejected her motion and Tatyana did not appeal.
- October 2015: Tatyana twice sought to "revise" the 2013 Parenting Plan. She also again sought to set aside the Child Support Order. A commissioner reduced support to the statutory minimum. No one appealed.

- November 2016: Judge Christopher Wickham held a threeday trial on Tatyana's motions to modify the parenting plan and to vacate the 2013 child support order. He vacated the 2013 child support order and granted CR 11 sanctions against John, but failed to enter findings supporting them. John superseded the judgment and timely appealed.
- December 2016: Judge Wickham retired.
- January 2017: Tatyana filed another CR 60 motion to vacate the 2013 and 2008 Parenting Plans. She reraised issues decided in prior proceedings, including challenging credibility determinations made against her.
- Later in 2017: Tatyana sought release of the supersedeas bond and additional monies from John. CP 785; RP (Jan 25, 2017). Judge Hirsch rejected her challenges to the 2016 trial that was on appeal, directing supersedeas issues to the Court of Appeals. Tatyana instead appealed.
- July 2018: The Court of Appeals granted John's appeal, reversing Judge Wickham's 2016 order vacating the 2013 child support order, and vacating his CR 11 sanctions, but remanding for either dismissal of the sanctions or findings supporting them. Tatyana petitioned for review in this Court and in the United States Supreme Court.
- December 2018: While her petitions were still pending, Tatyana sought to have a different superior court judge enter findings based on oral statements Judge Wickham made during the trial. The trial court denied the motion because the second appeal was still pending and because it had no authority to enter findings. Tatyana again appealed.
- Both this Court and SCOTUS denied review of the 2018 Court of Appeals decision in John's favor, rendering it final.
- The Court of Appeals consolidated two of Tatyana's appeals.
  She also has another appeal pending in Division II.

In this matter, the appellate court issued its decision on

Tatyana's consolidated appeals on March 9, 2021. App. C. The

appellate court held (App. C at 2-3):

(1) Tatyana's argument that the trial court erred when it did not release funds in the supersedeas bond is moot because we vacated those fees in a prior appeal;

(2) the trial court did not abuse its discretion when it denied Tatyana's 2017 motion to vacate the 2013 parenting plan under CR 60;

(3) Tatyana's argument regarding her constitutional right to raise children is barred by RAP 2.5;

(4) Tatyana's argument on federal immigration regulations is barred by res judicata [claim preclusion];

(5) Tatyana's argument that the trial court failed to consider financial circumstances is barred by res judicata [claim preclusion];

(6) the trial court did not err when it denied her 2018 motion to enter findings on an issue then pending on appeal;

(7) although a retired trial court judge is authorized to sit as a judge pro tempore by statute, we have no authority to order him to come out of retirement to preside over a case.

The appellate court therefore affirmed. Id.

It is difficult to determine whether Tatyana challenges any of

these holdings. She presents *nine* issues, none of which expressly

addresses the appellate court's actual holdings, and some of which

even challenge alleged 2016 "findings" vacated long ago. PFR 4-5.

For the reasons stated *infra*, no errors occurred, and no significant issues are presented. Review is unwarranted here.

#### REASONS THIS COURT SHOULD DENY REVIEW

#### A. Tatyana fails to state any recognized ground for review.

Tatyana does not cite RAP 13.4, nor does she argue any proper ground for review. See PFR. And indeed, she fails to straightforwardly challenge any of the appellate court's express holdings, virtually any of which would be a sufficient ground on which to affirm. This Court should deny review.

John does not seek review of any issue, so no Reply to this Answer is permitted. RAP 13.4(d) ("A party may file a reply to an answer <u>only</u> if the answering party seeks review of issues not raised in the petition for review") (emphasis added).

# B. The Court of Appeals did not weigh any evidence, which is not a basis for granting review in any event.

Tatyana appears to argue that the appellate court improperly weighed the evidence presented to Judge Wickham in 2016. PFR 11-13. It did not weigh any evidence. *See* App. C. Moreover, in *2018* the appellate court had *vacated* Judge Wickham's rulings specifically because *he failed to make any findings* supporting them. *See* App. B. His prior decision is thus irrelevant here.

It is unclear what Tatyana means by, "It is tacitly conceded that **neither** of [*sic*] the 2016 USCIS order and [*sic*] the 2016 trial finding of extraordinary circumstances [*sic*] mentioned above are barred by res-judicata [*sic*]." PFR 12. No concession, tacit or otherwise, has been made. Nor is there a "2016 finding of extraordinary circumstances." *Id*. On the contrary, the 2018 appellate decision *vacated* Judge Wickham's 2016 rulings. *See* App. B.

There is no basis on which to grant review.

#### C. Supersedeas is moot.

The appellate court held that "Tatyana's argument that the trial court erred when it did not release funds in the supersedeas bond is moot because we vacated those fees in a prior appeal." App. C at 2, 10-11. Tatyana does not address mootness. PFR 13-15. She instead argues that the appellate court "made long-false-ridicules [*sic*] case analysis- [*sic*] which are not matching with [*sic*] Tatyana's request, denied Tatyana's motion [*sic*] via fabricated holding [*sic*] in the opinion." PFR 13. She appears to be challenging Judge Hirsch's refusal to *increase* the bond amount. PFR 14-15. But since those fees were *vacated* in a prior opinion, that issue is also moot.

Review is unnecessary.

# D. The trial court did not err in refusing to enter findings purportedly made by a different judge.

The appellate court held that "the trial court did not err when it denied [Tatyana's] 2018 motion to enter findings on an issue then pending appeal." App. C at 2-3. Specifically, the "trial court correctly denied Tatyana's motion because the issue was pending appeal and had not been mandated at the time of the motion." App. C at 21, 23-25 (citing, *inter alia* RAP 7.2(e); *State v. Friedlund*, 182 Wn.2d 388, 395-96, 341 P.3d 280 (2015)). Tatyana fails to challenge this correct holding, which is an independently sufficient reason to deny review.

Moreover, the successor judge "had no authority to enter findings for a trial heard by a predecessor judge." App. C at 21-23, 28-29 (citing, *inter alia*, *Tacoma Recycling Inc. v. Capital Mat. Hand. Co.*, 42 Wn. App. 439, 441-42, 711 P.2d 388 (1985) (successor judge generally may not enter findings of fact based on testimony heard by predecessor judge); *Marriage of Crosetto*, 101 Wn. App. 89, 95, 1 P.3d 1180 (2000) (same); *State v. Bryant*, 65 Wn. App. 547, 549, 829 P.2d 209 (1992) (same; rule applies even where the prior judge entered an oral decision); RCW 2.28.030 (judge "shall not act . . . [w]hen he or she was not present and sitting as a member of the court at the hearing of a matter submitted for its decision")).

Tatyana does not challenge any of this controlling authority, instead relying solely on *State v. Portomene*, 79 Wn. App. 863, 905 P.2d 1234 (1995). PFR 15-16. But there, while the State failed to present findings until two months after the defendant filed his opening brief, ultimately *the same judge who heard the trial entered the findings*.

7

*Portomene*, 79 Wn. App. at 864-65. That is not true here, so *Portomene* is inapposite.

There is no basis upon which to grant review.

# E. An appellate court may not order a trial judge to come out of retirement.

The appellate court held that although a retired judge *may* sit as a judge *pro tempore* by statute, Tatyana cited no authority that an appellate court may *order* one to come out of retirement to hear a matter. App. C at 29-30. This is correct. *See* Tatyana's BA 47-50. Certainly, RCW 2.08.180 says no such thing. The appellate court did not make any "fake holdings." PFR 16.

Review is unwarranted.

# F. The appellate court did not "falsely" state that no constitutional rights are at issue.

The appellate court held (a) that Tatyana's argument regarding her constitutional right to raise children is barred by RAP 2.5 (she never raised it in the trial court); and (b) that her arguments based on federal immigration regs and financial issues are barred by *res judicata* (claim preclusion). App. C. at 17-20. Again, Tatyana fails to challenge these correct holdings. PFR 18-20.

No grounds for review exist.

For the first time here, Tatyana appears to claim that her right to due process was violated by the presentation of false evidence in her *2016* trial. Obviously, that issue too is barred by RAP 2.5, and by *res judicata*, as she could have raised it in a cross-appeal when John successfully appealed and vacated those rulings years ago. In any event, her arguments are again based on unsupported credibility claims that she lost long go, lacking any legal support. PFR 18-20.

Review is unwanted.

#### CONCLUSION

This Court should deny review.

No reply to this Answer is permitted. RAP 13.4(d) ("A party may file a reply to an answer <u>only</u> if the answering party seeks review of issues not raised in the petition for review") (emphasis added). John does not seek review of any issue.